
To:
All Members of the Personnel Committee

Mr D Poole (Chairman)
Mrs M McLean
Mr E Davey
Mr J Binns
Mr C Harrison
Mr M Short

28 February 2019

Members of the Personnel Committee

You are hereby summoned to attend the Meeting of the Personnel Committee 
to be held in The Council Chamber, The Grove, 25 St John's Street, Hythe, 
SO45 6BZ on Thursday, 7th March, 2019 at 10.00 am

Yours faithfully

Stephanie Bennett

Clerk to the Council

A G E N D A

1. APOLOGIES 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND 
DISPENSATIONS 

a. To note any declaration of interest made by 
Members in connection with an Agenda item. 
Members to specify the nature of the interest;

b. To receive any written requests for 
dispensations for disclosable pecuniary 
interests;

c. To grant any requests for dispensation as 
appropriate

Public Document Pack

Page 1



3. MINUTES 3 - 4
To resolve to agree the Minutes of the meeting of the 
previous Personnel Committee

4. POLICIES 5 - 22
a. To consider and agree the draft policies for:

 Drugs and Alcohol
 Dignity at Work
 Holiday Pay

5. COUNCILLOR ORIENTATION 23 - 26
To consider the report of the Clerk
Recommendations
a. the Clerk develops and implements a councillors orientation 

programme based on the framework set out in this report;
b. any resources required in addition to the budgets allocated are 

reported back to the Personnel Committee for consideration.

6. PDI PROCESS 
Clerk to report

Page 2



40

HYTHE AND DIBDEN PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of the
Personnel Committee 

held at The Community Centre, Brinton Lane, Hythe
on Friday 13th July, 2018 at 10am

Councillors: 
  p
  p 

J Binns 
E Davey (Chairman and Ex Officio)

  p M McLean (ex officio)
  p M Short
  p D Poole
  p C Harrison

Officers in attendance

Mrs S Bennett (Clerk to the Council)
Mr S Spencer (Deputy Clerk to the Council)

58/18 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

Cllr Dan Poole was elected Chairman

59/18 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

60/18 TO NOTE ANY DECLARATION OF INTEREST MADE BY MEMBERS IN 
CONNECTION WITH AN AGENDA ITEM

There were no declarations made.

61/18 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting of the Personnel Committee held on 9th 
February 2018 were taken as read and signed by the Chairman.

62/18 HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY

The Committee considered the reviewed policy for Health and Safety.

RESOLVED 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Personnel Committee 41 13th July 2018

That the reviewed policy for Health and Safety be agreed 
subject to the additions highlighted.

63/18 TRAINING FOR COUNCILLORS

The Committee considered their recommended training for Councillors 
from May 2019 and highlighted training that would be valuable for the new 
council.  This included:
 Code of conduct and behaviour
 Ex officio role
 IT and electronic communications
 Dealing with misinformation
 Team working
 Decision making as a Council

 Duties of parish councillors
 Safeguarding
 Council governance arrangements
 Handling the press/social media
 Planning

The committee also requested more fact finding visits to amenities and 
assets and a printed councillors handbook to be re-instated.

64/18 WORKFORCE BUDGET

The committee considered the workforce budget report for 2019-2020.

Councillors also considered ex-gratia gifts to the Maintenance Team and 4 
office staff in recognition of the challenging workload that they have 
delivered in the first half of 2018.

RESOLVED that

a) The salary budget for 2019 – 2020 be agreed at 
£412,602.

b) The proposed spinal column points be agreed.
c) Ex-gratia gifts at a cost of £700 be agreed.

The meeting closed at 11.00am.

Chairman

Date

mnpers58

Page 4



Drugs and Alcohol Policy

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This Parish Council aims to act as a good employer and to conduct its business activities in a 
way which will achieve the highest possible standard of health and safety for its employees, 
Elected Members and members of the public.

Alcohol and drug misuse or abuse can be a serious problem within the workplace. Employees 
who drink excessively or take unlawful drugs are more likely to work inefficiently, be absent 
from work, suffer from mental ill health, have work accidents and endanger their colleagues. 
The Council has a duty to protect the health, safety and welfare of all its employees. However, 
the Council recognises that, for a number of reasons, employees could develop alcohol or 
drug related problems. 

This policy aims to promote a responsible attitude to drink and drugs and to offer assistance 
to employees who may need it.

Where applicable, this policy also applies to workers, agency workers, consultants, and 
contractors.

2.0 AIMS OF THIS POLICY

This workplace drugs and alcohol policy aims to contribute to a safe, healthy and productive 
work environment by:

 Preventing drugs and alcohol problems through awareness raising
 Identifying problems at an early stage
 Offering support to those who have a drug and alcohol problem

This policy has been developed from a previous policy and best practice guidance and applies 
equally to all staff including all levels of management.

This Council has set the following objectives:
 All staff to have access to drugs and alcohol advice and information
 All staff to be supported to overcome drugs and alcohol problems in an appropriate 

manner
 All staff to receive drugs training, as appropriate, in relation to their work

3.0 RESPONSIBILITIES

Overall responsibility for the implementation of this policy is that of the Clerk.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Day to day responsibility for ensuring the implementation of the policy is delegated to the 
Deputy Clerk to the Council (for the Grove office staff) and the Facilities and Maintenance 
Supervisor for all maintenance staff.

All employees are required to co-operate with supervisors and managers on health and safety 
matters, to ensure the implementation of this Policy.  This includes making reports to line 
managers when there are concerns that a colleague is not fit to work.

4.0 DEFINITION

Drugs and alcohol problems in the context of this policy are defined as those which incorporate 
a variety of behaviours caused by drugs or alcohol which may be problematic to the individual 
and/or to this Council.

In relation to drugs, this policy applies to those that are unlawful or illegal under the criminal 
law, including psychoactive substances, i.e. those which are capable of producing a 
psychoactive effect in a person who consumes them, and those known as ‘Smart Drugs’ and 
which are not exempted substances. Although alcohol is an exempted substance for the 
purposes of the criminal law on drugs, it is still covered under the terms of this policy. 

This policy does not apply to prescribed medication or over-the counter medication, provided 
always that those medications are being taken in accordance with a doctor’s or the 
manufacturer’s instructions and are not being misused. Many prescribed and over-the-counter 
medications can impair performance and employees have a responsibility for reading and 
following the advice supplied with their medicines, taking them only in accordance with that 
advice and seeking further medical advice from a doctor or pharmacist where appropriate.

5.0 THE RULES

5.1 All individuals working for Hythe and Dibden Parish Council are required to report fit 
for duty and able to perform assigned duties safely and to an acceptable standard 
without limitations due to the use or after effects of alcohol, drugs (unlawful, 
prescription or over the counter) or of any other substance.

5.2 Any employee who has consumed alcohol or drugs likely to render them unfit for work 
should not carry out any work-related activity. 

5.3 Any employee who notices obvious signs of alcohol or drug misuse or abuse in another 
employee should report their observations in confidence to their line manager or 
supervisor. 

5.4 Any employee who is taking medication prescribed for them by a doctor (or over-the-
counter medication) should inform their line manager or supervisor if that medication 
may have an effect on their ability to carry out their work safely, for example it may 
cause drowsiness, reduced concentration or nausea, and they then must follow any 
instructions given by their line manager. 

5.5 This Council will send home any individual who arrives for work under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol, or who consumes alcohol or unlawful drugs on the premises.

Page 6



5.6 This Council prohibits the use, manufacture, sale, purchase, transfer, distribution, 
consumption, or possession of unlawful drugs and alcohol, or substances that affect 
the ability to rationalise or perform work tasks safely on Parish Council property and/or 
whilst at work. The Council reserves the right to conduct searches for drugs and/or 
alcohol, including, but not limited to searches of lockers, filing cabinets, desks, 
packages etc. that are situated on Council property.  Any drugs and/or alcohol 
discovered during such a search will be confiscated and disciplinary action will 
commence as appropriate.  All criminal matters will be reported to the police.

A breach of these rules is a disciplinary offence and will be dealt with in accordance with the 
Council’s disciplinary procedure.  Depending on the seriousness of the offence, it may amount 
to gross misconduct and could result in an employee’s summary dismissal.

6.0 HELP AND SUPPORT

It is the Council’s intention to deal constructively and sympathetically with an employee’s 
alcohol or drug related problems, such as alcohol or drug dependency. When it is known that 
an employee has an alcohol or drug problem their line manager or supervisor will be able to 
provide advice and guidance on how to seek suitable treatment and can refer the employee 
to external organisations who can provide further help and advice, such as NHS Choices 
alcohol addiction services, Talk to Frank, Adfam and NHS Smokefree. The primary objective 
of any discussions will be to assist the employee with the problem in as compassionate, 
supportive and constructive a way as possible. Any discussions of the nature of an employee’s 
alcohol or drug problem and the record of any treatment will be strictly confidential unless the 
employee agrees otherwise.

If an employee consents a referral to Occupational Health will be made.

7.0 ALCOHOL AND DRUG RELATED MISCONDUCT

Whilst Section 6 of this policy is aimed at assisting and supporting employees with alcohol or 
drug problems, action will nevertheless be taken under the Council’s disciplinary procedure if 
misconduct takes place at work as a result of drinking or taking drugs, or if an employee is 
found to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs whilst at work, and this includes when 
driving private or Council vehicles on Council business.  Even a small amount of alcohol can 
affect work performance and, if an employee is found under the influence of alcohol whilst at 
work, there could be serious health and safety consequences both for the employee and for 
their work colleagues. The same applies to being under the influence of drugs. The Council 
will take all reasonable steps to prevent employees carrying out any work-related activities if 
they are considered to be unfit to undertake the work as a result of being under the influence 
of alcohol or drugs.

Incapacity or misconduct caused by an excess of alcohol or drugs at work (including being 
over the legal alcohol limit or drug limits, or being unfit to drive because of taking drugs, when 
driving private or Council vehicles on Council business) is a potential gross misconduct 
offence under the Council’s disciplinary procedure and the employee is therefore liable to be 
summarily dismissed. 

Page 7



It is also a potential gross misconduct offence for an employee to buy or sell drugs, alcohol or 
smoked tobacco products or to be in possession of or consume drugs on the Council’s 
premises, and this includes buying or selling drugs, alcohol or smoked tobacco products from 
and being in possession of or consuming drugs in Council vehicles. In addition, the employee 
may be reported to the police if there is evidence to suggest that they may have committed a 
criminal offence.

The Council reserves the right in any of these circumstances to arrange for the employee to 
be escorted from the Council’s premises immediately and sent home without pay for the rest 
of the day or shift. The Council also reserves the right to suspend the employee on full pay 
while carrying out an investigation. 

8.0 COMMITMENTS OF THE COUNCIL

8.1 Absence for treatment and rehabilitation will be regarded as normal sickness absence
8.2 It is recognised that the journey to recovery may include relapses
8.3 This policy will be continuously monitored and reviewed and adjustments made as 

required
8.4 Strict confidentiality is assured.  All discussions with an employee in connection with 

drugs or alcohol will be strictly confidential except in the case of potential criminal 
offences whereupon the police will be notified.  While appropriate personnel records 
will be kept, it is accepted that any record of treatment will be the property of the person 
administering that treatment.  No discussion about the employee will take place with 
another party without the consent of that employee

9.0 PROCEDURES

9.1 If an employee, visitor or contractor arrives at the workplace and a supervisor or line 
manager has reasonable cause to suspect that the person is unfit for work due to the 
use of alcohol or other substances the employee, visitor or contractor will be informed 
of the suspicions and will be required to remove themselves from the work 
environment.  Colleagues who believe that an individual is unfit for work must report 
this to the supervisor or line manager and take steps to keep themselves safe.

9.2 If an off duty employee is requested to work it is the employee’s duty to consider 
whether they may be impaired due to the use of alcohol or other unlawful substance 
and refuse such request.

9.3 Employees who are prescribed medication are expected to consult with their doctor to 
determine if use of the medication may have a negative effect on job performance.  If 
there is such risk they must report this to their supervisor or line manager and 
appropriate action will be taken.

An employee with an alcohol or drug problem should seek appropriate help. If an employee 
has an alcohol or drug problem which affects their conduct or performance at work and they 
refuse the opportunity to receive help and treatment, the matter will be referred for action 
under the Council’s disciplinary procedure as appropriate. Likewise, if after accepting 
treatment, counselling and assistance, and following review and evaluation, an employee’s 
conduct or work performance reverts to the problem level, the matter may also be dealt with 
through the disciplinary procedure.

Page 8



Prohibition on alcohol and drug consumption in the workplace

No alcohol or drugs must be brought onto or consumed on Council premises at any time (other 
than in relation to approved social functions which take place on Council premises where the 
reasonable drinking of alcohol has been permitted). For the purpose of this policy this also 
includes performance-enhancing drugs even if the drugs are not unlawful under the criminal 
law, unless they have been medically prescribed for the employee by a doctor and are being 
taken in accordance with the doctor’s instructions. 

Staff must never drink alcohol or take drugs if they are required to drive private or Council 
vehicles vehicles on Council business or operate machinery.  Employees are not permitted to 
consume alcohol during work breaks, e.g. lunchtimes.

Employees representing the Council at business/client functions or conferences or attending 
Council organised social events outside normal working hours are expected to be moderate if 
drinking alcohol and to take specific action to ensure they are well within the legal limits if they 
are driving. They are prohibited from taking drugs on these occasions. 

Social drinking after normal working hours and away from the Council’s premises is, of course, 
generally a personal matter and does not directly concern the Council. The Council’s concern 
only arises when, because of the pattern or amount of drink involved, the employee’s 
attendance, work performance or conduct at work deteriorates.

A breach of these provisions is a disciplinary offence and will be dealt with in accordance with 
the Council’s disciplinary procedure. Depending on the seriousness of the offence, it may 
amount to gross misconduct and could result in the employee’s summary dismissal.  

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



DIGNITY AT WORK - DRAFT

POLICY AND PROCEDURE
1. INTRODUCTION
The aim of this document is to set out the policy and procedure of Hythe and Dibden 
Parish Council for resolving complaints by employees of harassment, intimidation 
and bullying in the workplace, from colleagues, managers and supervisors, members 
of the public and Councillors.

2. POLICY STATEMENT
The Council is committed to creating a working environment where employees do 
not suffer harassment, bullying or intimidation on any grounds, specifically age, 
disability, gender or gender re-assignment, pregnancy, maternity, race (which 
includes colour, nationality and ethnic or national origins) sexual orientation, religion 
or belief, or because someone is married or in a civil partnership. Council employees 
have the right to be treated with dignity and respect. Harassment/bullying at work is 
not acceptable and will not be permitted or condoned by the Council, whether in a 
single incident or persistent acts.

The Council also recognises that it has a responsibility to protect employees from
harassment and/or bullying at work by members of the public. Employees have the 
right to be treated with dignity and respect by the public they provide services to.
All Council employees have an equal responsibility to treat each other and members 
of the public with dignity and respect, and uphold the Policy. All managers and 
supervisors have a duty to implement and enforce this Policy in a fair and equitable 
way and to ensure that all employees for whom they are responsible understand and 
follow it. Complaints of harassment/bullying will be taken seriously and as far as 
possible managed speedily and confidentially. Every effort will be made to resolve 
issues informally, using mediation processes as appropriate and where this is not 
possible the complaint will be dealt with under the formal provisions of the Grievance 
Procedure. The Council will take active steps to reduce the potential for on-going 
conflict between the parties during and following an investigation. Both parties are 
entitled to be represented by a representative of their choice and will be provided 
with support and advice that is appropriate to the circumstances.

The Council will thoroughly investigate any allegations of harassment and/or 
bullying. There will be no reprisals or sanctions imposed for making a 
harassment/bullying complaint except where there is reasonable belief that the 

Page 11



complaint is frivolous, vexatious or that a complainant has acted maliciously then the 
Council may take disciplinary action against the complainant.

General harassment such as bullying is not currently covered by statute but the 
Council may be liable for failure to deal effectively with such behaviour. Liability may 
arise from the duty at common law to provide a safe place of work and to maintain 
mutual trust and confidence or by virtue of a claim for constructive dismissal in the 
context of inadequate protection from the employer.

The Council recognises the right of employees to lodge a complaint via the 
provisions of the Sex Discrimination Act 1975, the Race Relations Act 1976, the 
Disability Discrimination Act 1995, the Human Rights Act 1999 or other relevant 
statute or Code of Practice. The Equality Act 2010 has consolidated and streamlined 
current anti-discrimination legislation, including the Acts listed above.

3. DEFINITIONS

3.1 Harassment
In general terms harassment can be defined as unwanted attention or behaviour that 
a person finds intimidating, upsetting, embarrassing, humiliating or offensive. It is not 
the intention of the perpetrator that is key in establishing whether harassment has 
occurred but it is the deed itself and the impact on the employee.

3.2 Bullying
Workplace bullying can be defined as offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or
humiliating behaviour, abuse of power or authority that attempts to undermine an
individual or a group of employees. It can occur at any level and within any 
relationship and is not confined to management or supervision. Employees may be 
bullied by colleagues as well as by managers or supervisors and groups of 
employees may bully individuals.

3.3 Discrimination
The Equality Act 2010 defines direct discrimination as less favourable treatment due 
to a protected characteristic. The protected characteristics under this Act are:-

• Age
• Disability
• Gender reassignment
• Marriage and civil partnership
• Pregnancy and maternity
• Race
• Religion or belief
• Gender
• Sexual orientation 

Indirect discrimination against individuals because they have a relevant protected

Page 12



characteristic is also covered, with the exception of pregnancy and maternity.

3.4 Victimisation
 This means treating someone less favourably than others because he or she, in 
good faith, complained (whether formally or informally) that someone has been 
bullying or harassing them or someone else, or has supported someone to make a 
complaint or  given evidence in relation to a complaint. This could include isolating 
someone because he or she has made a complaint, or giving them more difficult or 
onerous tasks.

4. GROUNDS
Sexual and racial harassment are significant problems but are only two examples of
harassment and intimidating behaviour. People can be subject to a wide range of 
such behaviours that are themselves based on an equally diverse set of stereotypes,
preconceptions and prejudices including;

• Race, ethnic origin, and skin colour
• Gender or sexual orientation, or gender re-assignment
• Willingness to challenge harassment (leading to victimisation)
• Membership or non-membership of a trade union
• Disabilities, sensory impairment, or learning difficulties
• Status as an ex offender
• Age
• AIDS/HIV status
• Health
• Physical characteristics
• Political, religious, or other beliefs

5. TYPES OF HARASSMENT
Harassment can range from extremes including violence to less obvious forms such 
as ignoring someone. However the behaviour is manifested it is likely to be 
unwarranted, unwelcome and unpleasant and may include;

• Unnecessary physical contact, leering or obscene gesturing
• Jokes, crude language, gossip, slander, sectarian songs, offensive mail or e-
mail
• Posters, graffiti, flags, bunting and emblems
• Isolation, non co-operation and exclusion from social activities
• Intrusion by pestering, spying or stalking
• Pressure to participate in political or religious groups
• Coercion for sexual favours

6. TYPES OF BULLYING
Bullying may manifest itself in a variety of different ways and is often persistent and
unpredictable. It occurs essentially when a person or persons use their strength or 
power to coerce, persecute or oppress others by fear, force or threat. It can occur 

Page 13



between colleagues, managers and subordinates and by one group to an individual 
member of staff.

Bullying is a gradual wearing down process that makes people feel demeaned and
inadequate and may be difficult to detect and/or confront. Types of bullying may 
include; 

• Persistent unfair criticism
• Setting objectives with unreasonable targets/timelines, either by managers 
or elected members
• Ignoring or excluding an individual by use of a third party
• Withholding information that should properly be shared
• Removing areas of responsibility unreasonably, and/or allocating menial 
tasks
• Undervaluing effort, taking credit for another’s ideas, spreading malicious 
rumours
• Blocking leave/training applications

7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGERS AND SUPERVISORS
Managers and supervisors have a key role in ensuring standards of conduct within 
their area of responsibility including:

• To treat their team with dignity and respect, be tolerant of and sensitive to 
the views of others who may have different beliefs, experiences or values, 
and model appropriate behaviour to their teams
• To deal with any unacceptable behaviour within the team, such as 
inappropriate comments or displaying potentially offensive material, whether 
or not a complaint has been made
• To reasonably prevent bullying and harassment, and protect and support
employees
• To deal with informal complaints in a confidential manner in accordance with 
the procedure set out in this document
• To ensure that victimisation does not occur towards any individual who has 
made a complaint
• To advise all new employees of their right to work in an atmosphere free of
harassment
• To make employees aware of their responsibilities and of the correct 
procedure to follow if they have a complaint.

In some instances, legitimate management actions may be perceived wrongly as 
bullying; for example seeking performance improvements or seeking to change office 
accommodation or working practices or patterns to improve efficiency. Managers 
have a responsibility to ensure that employees perform their duties to an acceptable 
standard. The legitimate management of performance should not be mistaken for 
bullying or harassment provided that people are managed fairly, given clear and 
reasonable objectives and support to achieve them, and are treated with dignity and 
respect.

Page 14



8. RESPONSIBILITIES OF EMPLOYEES
All employees are responsible for:

• Treating colleagues with dignity and respect and being tolerant of and 
sensitive to the views of others who may have different beliefs, experiences or 
values
• Maintaining a working environment free from bullying or harassment for the 
benefit of everyone
• Being supportive to others who may be experiencing bullying or harassment
• Making it clear to others when you find their behaviour unacceptable, unless 
it should be obvious in advance that this should be the case
• Co-operating with any investigation into bullying or harassment 

9. PROCEDURES FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS – INFORMAL PROCESS
The Council encourages employees to try to resolve issues informally, as experience 
shows that many issues can be resolved at this stage. Attempts to resolve issues 
informally do not prevent the matter being raised through the formal procedure at a 
later date.

The informal process can have advantages including:
• Clearing up misunderstandings before a problem becomes more difficult to 
resolve
• Giving the other party concerned an opportunity to explain their perspective 
on the issue
• Allowing both parties space to reflect and agree a way forward
• Providing a speedy and effective resolution
• Positive benefits to the working relationship
• Keeping the matter confidential between the parties concerned
• Reducing the level and length of disruption to working relationships

Wherever possible employees who believe they are victims of harassment and/or 
bullying should as a first step bring their concerns to the attention of the person they 
believe to be responsible for the unwanted behaviour and ask that it must cease 
immediately. Where employees do not feel able to confront the person they believe 
to be harassing and/or bullying them or where the person has been confronted and 
no improvement in behaviour has resulted they may consult with their trade union 
representative and/or bring the matter to their line manager or supervisor.  In the 
case of the concern being about the conduct of the line manager or supervisor the 
matter is to be raised with the Deputy Clerk/Clerk as appropriate.  

The initial responsibility of the manager or supervisor is to advise employees who
consult them. Advice in this context includes:

• Helping the person to clarify whether the behaviour perceived as offensive 
did constitute harassment and/or bullying and to attempt to identify any 
complaints which may be of a frivolous or vindictive nature

Page 15



• Advising the complainant to take note of the date, time, place, details and 
witnesses of the alleged harassment and/or bullying
• Exploring possible strategies by which the person might resolve the difficulty 
with or without recourse to intervention
• Advising complainants of their rights under internal procedures and/or 
relevant anti-discrimination legislation
• Providing on-going support and advice, when requested, to persons who 
decide not to proceed with a complaint.

The manager or supervisor will ensure complete confidentiality.

When requested, the Deputy Clerk or Clerk as appropriate, will provide support and 
advice to the manager/supervisors.

10. CONCILIATION AND MEDIATION
In the event that a person, after consultation with the manager or supervisor, wishes 
to proceed with a complaint and requests intervention, the manager or supervisor will 
inform, in confidence, the person or persons against whom the complaint is being
made, of the nature of the complaint, and offer conciliation, the object of which is to 
ensure the following:

• That there is sufficient opportunity for an early apology to be given;
• No recurrence of the behaviour which gave rise to the complaint;
• An agreement between the parties on standards of behaviour;
• No reprisals, against the complainant for making the complaint;
• In the event of the complainant suffering disadvantage as a consequence of 
resisting the harassment, the situation will be redressed as far as possible to 
the satisfaction of the complainant.

In certain cases it may be decided to commission an independent mediator to 
resolve the issues and/or conflict between the parties at any time during the process.

11. FORMAL PROCESS
Where a complaint is not settled by conciliation or mediation at an informal level or 
the nature of the complaint is so serious that it needs to be dealt with formally, then it 
will be dealt with under the formal stages of the Grievance Procedure.

12. UNSUBSTANTIATED COMPLAINTS
Where it is found after formal investigation that a complaint is unsubstantiated, the 
reasons for the finding will be explained to both parties. If the complainant continues 
to be aggrieved they may pursue the matter through the provisions of the appropriate 
legislation or other relevant statute. In cases where a complaint is found to be 
frivolous and/or vindictive, action may be taken against the complainant under the 
terms of the Council’s Disciplinary Procedure.

Page 16



13. EXTERNAL COMPLAINTS
Complaints from members of the public regarding alleged harassment/bullying will 
be investigated in the first instance by the appropriate manager.  If after investigation 
it is found that there are reasonable grounds for complaint the matter will be dealt 
with under the terms of the Council’s Disciplinary Procedure and/or Complaints 
Procedure as appropriate.

14. COUNCILLORS
For the purposes of this policy councillors who are concerned about the behaviour of 
another councillor, member of the public or an employee are advised to follow the 
same procedure as above.  In the case of a councillor they are advised to report to 
the Chairman of Council for councillor and member of the public related concerns or 
the Clerk in relation to concerns about the actions of an employee

Policy adopted ………………………… 2019

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Leave and Annual Leave Pay Policy

This policy sets out employees’ entitlements to annual leave and the Council rules 
on taking annual leave. Under the Local Government Services Green Book and 
other arrangements employees are entitled to the following holidays: 

1. Public Holidays and Concessionary Days
Employees shall, irrespective of length of service, be entitled to a holiday with
a normal day’s pay for each of the statutory, general and public holidays as
they occur.  Concessionary days occur as per local arrangements and 
National Government direction.

2. Annual Leave
The minimum paid annual leave entitlement is twenty-one days with a
further four days after five years of continuous service. The entitlement as
expressed applies to five day working patterns. For alternative working
patterns an equivalent leave entitlement should be calculated.

3. Joining or leaving
The annual leave entitlement of employees leaving or joining an authority is
proportionate to their completed service during the leave year.

4. Extra Statutory Holidays
Employees shall have an entitlement to two extra statutory day’s holiday that 
are added to the annual leave.  

Individual contracts of employment will detail an employee’s personal entitlement 
with part time employees due fewer days or hours when compared to a full time 
employee.  The Council’s holiday year runs from 1 April to 31 March.

Arrangements for taking annual leave
All leave must be pre-authorised by the supervisor or line manager. Taking leave 
without authorisation will be considered a gross misconduct offence and taking leave 
despite a declined request will be considered a gross misconduct offence. Further 
rules on booking leave from work are given below.

Booking leave
Employees must give notice of their request to take leave. Applications should be 
sent to their supervisor or line manager using the annual leave request forms that 
are available from the office. 

Page 19



The supervisor or line manager will consider the request for annual leave and then 
notify the employee of their decision by completing the Annual leave request form. 

Employees are advised not to make any firm travel or accommodation arrangements 
etc until they have received written confirmation that their request for leave has been 
granted. There may be circumstances where the Council is unable to grant the 
request and is not liable for any loss incurred by an employee, such as lost deposits 
etc, if they incur costs and make commitments prior to receiving confirmation.

There may be more requests than usual for leave that coincide with school 
holidays/half terms, due to the number of employees with children of school age. The 
Council will make every effort to accept as many of these requests as possible, but 
has to have regard to its operations and ensuring there is sufficient cover for all work 
to be undertaken.   

The Council may ask an employee to cancel any previously agreed leave. There 
may be various reasons for this, such as operational or staffing issues, or business 
commitments that require the employee’s presence. The Council recognises the 
inconvenience that this may cause an employee and, therefore, understands that the 
employee may refuse this request.

The Council will make a decision on whether the employee will be recompensed, 
where the cancellation is agreed, and the employee suffers a financial detriment.

Public holidays 
Due to the needs of the Council, it may be necessary for an employee to work on a 
public holiday. Where this happens, employees will be entitled to take a day’s leave 
at another time in the leave year to be agreed with the line manager or supervisor in 
accordance with business needs. 

Holiday pay
During annual leave, employees will receive their normal pay.  In accordance with 
case law employees will also receive any due additional pay calculated from their 
previous 3 month’s additional pay.

In the case of the Maintenance Team (not caretakers) the following calculation will 
apply:

Additional pay per hour of annual leave = Additional relevant gross pay over 
last three months/contractual hours over last three months

In the case of the Caretakers the following calculation will apply:
Additional pay per hour of annual leave = Gross relevant pay in last three 
months – gross contractual pay in last three months/Contractual hours in last 
three months.

Page 20



Public duties
Paid leave of absence will be granted for employees undertaking jury service
or serving on public bodies or undertaking public duties. Where an allowance 
14 is claimable for loss of earnings the employee should claim and pay the
allowance to the employing authority.

New starters and pre-booked leave 
During the recruitment process, prospective employees may be asked whether they 
have any leave booked that would take place after commencement of employment. If 
the individual is recruited, the Council will normally allow such leave to be taken. 

The rules on accrual of annual leave may mean that the employee has not, at the 
time that leave is to be taken, accrued such length of leave to cover their holiday. In 
this case, the employee and the line manager will agree how any time off in excess 
of accrued leave will be covered. 

Holidays and sickness 
The normal sickness notification procedures will apply (except in exceptional 
circumstances) to an employee when they are on leave and wish to reallocate the 
period of leave as sickness with the result that reconvened leave may be taken at 
another time in the leave year.  

Time off for medical screening
Necessary paid time off will be granted for the purpose of cancer screening.

Other leave (family leave)
Employees may become entitled to other leave in addition to annual leave.
Annual leave will continue to accrue during these periods of leave and, as part of a 
pre-leave meeting that will be arranged between the employee and their line 
manager, a discussion will take place covering the taking of the accrued annual 
leave.

Special leave
Additional leave with or without pay may be granted in special circumstances at the 
discretion of the employing authority. Authorities shall give particular consideration to 
granting reasonable paid time off for dependants as defined under the Employment 
Relations Act 1999.

Untaken annual leave 
The Council encourages employees to use all of their leave entitlement each year so 
that they have the opportunity to rest. Employees are permitted to carry forward a 
maximum of 5 days annual leave into the next annual leave year.

Page 21



If sickness means that an employee cannot take their full leave entitlement in a leave 
year, the employee may be able to carry forward some of the leave to the next leave 
year. 

Ordinarily, the Council will not permit payment in lieu of annual leave unless 
exceptional circumstances apply. In every case, payment in lieu of the statutory 
minimum entitlement will not be permitted.

Termination of employment 
When employment terminates part way through a leave year, an employee’s leave 
entitlement will be recalculated on a pro-rata basis. This will determine the amount of 
leave the employee would be entitled to, for the period of service during the leave 
year. 

Any outstanding leave accrued but untaken will be paid to the employee in their final 
pay. This is subject to the right of the Council for the employee to take their 
outstanding leave during their notice period. Otherwise, the amount due for 
outstanding leave will be added to the employee’s final pay. 

If the employee has exceeded their pro-rata entitlement to holidays at the time they 
leave their employment, this will be classed as an overpayment and an amount to 
cover this will be deducted from their final pay, subject to the maximum that their 
final pay permits.

Policy adopted ………………… February 2019

Page 22



PERSONNEL COMMITTEE – 22 FEBRUARY, 2019

COUNCILLOR ORIENTATION

1.0 INTRODUCTION
Personnel Committee requested training and orientation to be prepared and made available 
for the new Council to be elected in May 2019 (Minute 63/18 refers).  The specifics that 
were requested:

 Code of conduct and behaviour
 Ex officio role
 IT and electronic communications
 Dealing with misinformation
 Team working
 Decision making as a Council

 Duties of parish councillors
 Safeguarding
 Council governance arrangements
 Handling the press/social media
 Planning

Councillors also confirmed that the visits to assets and areas were very useful and requested 
that the councillor handbook be re-instated.

This report has been prepared based on the Personnel Committee requests.

2.0 COUNCILLOR HANDBOOK
The handbook has been available to all councillors through the website however councillors 
have requested a hard copy for easy reference.  It is proposed that the handbook provide 
the framework and the legacy for councillor orientation with the current version refreshed 
and updated with the information that all councillors might find useful.  The handbook will 
be available on line and councillors can be trained to search within the ModGov ‘Council 
documents’ to find reference to topics that they are reading up on.  It is proposed that any 
councillor wishing a hard copy will be provided one.

3.0 ORIENTATION EVENTS
Councillors have access to all Hampshire Association of Local Council training however the 
local preference has been for the Council to undertake its own generic and bespoke 
orientation and training tailored to the priorities and operations of the Council.  It is 
proposed that access to HALC courses remains open to councillors and that the following 
approach is undertaken at Hythe and Dibden.

4.0 GENERIC ORIENTATION 
Using the Councillor’s Handbook to provide the framework and legacy for the orientation it 
is proposed to provide the following sessions:

4.1 The Council 
This will include:

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 the structure of the Council and the local government landscape, 
 the area of the Parish, the wards, and the other councillors 
 where to find information about the Council
 who is who at the Parish Council and contact details,
 the assets of the Council and a site visit to places around the Parish

4.2 Meetings and Finance
This will include:
 the committees and groups within the Council 
 the timetable of meetings
 how the Council sends out it’s agendas and summons the councillors (including 

an overview of ModernGov)
 the statute and policies that set out how decisions are made and how the Council 

operates
 requirements on councillors as individuals eg Code of Conduct, Disclosures of 

Interest, safeguarding etc
 Evidence based decision making and case work, and dealing with misinformation

4.3 Following the two sessions highlighted above and the bespoke 1 to 1 training 
covered in 5.0 it is proposed to offer a third session whereby the councillors 
nominate the subjects to be included.

4.4 The approach set out in 4.1 to 4.3 can be provided by experienced councillors and 
the Clerk and Deputy Clerk.

5.0 BESPOKE 1 TO 1 TRAINING
Acting as a councillor in today’s community requires a councillor to gain a considerable 
number of skills.  Experience has demonstrated that bespoke training is on occasions 
required to enhance a councillor’s understanding of Council operations and requirements 
on it and to equip a councillor to perform a specific function for the Council.

Bespoke training can often be provided by officers using the resources available to the 
Council however on occasions it might require assistance from external parties eg a legal 
briefing.

All councillors will be offered a 1 to 1 session with the Clerk and/or Deputy Clerk to 
introduce them to their IT and e mail provision.  Ongoing 1 to 1 IT support will be available 
to all councillors.

6.0 COMMITTEE  AND WORKING GROUP ORIENTATION
Each committee and working group will provide orientation for new councillors.

Page 24



7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:
a. the Clerk develops and implements a councillors orientation programme based 

on the framework set out in this report;
b. any resources required in addition to the budgets allocated are reported back to 

the Personnel Committee for consideration.

For further information contact:
Stephanie Bennett
02380 841411
Stephanie.bennett@hytheanddibden.gov.uk

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Policies
	Dignity at Work Policy
	Annual Leave and Annual Leave Pay Policy

	5 Councillor Orientation

